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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·Monday, June 29, 2020

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·9:10 a.m.

·3

·4

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· I will open the record in

·6· ·the matter of the appeal for an earlier effective date of

·7· ·industrial disability retirement of Regina T.

·8· ·Schueneman -- that's S-C-H-U-E-N-E-M-A-N -- and the

·9· ·California Department of Motor Vehicles.· This bears

10· ·Office of Administrative Hearings number 2020030181,

11· ·agency case number 20191094.· This matter is heard before

12· ·the Board of Administration for the California Public

13· ·Employees' Retirement System.

14· · · · · · My name is Debra Nye-Perkins.· I am an

15· ·Administrative Law Judge with the State of California's

16· ·Office of Administrative Hearings, and I'm not affiliated

17· ·with the Board of Administration or the California Public

18· ·Employees' Retirement System.· I've been assigned to hear

19· ·this matter today.· This hearing is taking place

20· ·telephonically at 9:00 a.m. on June 29th, 2020.

21· · · · · · May I take appearance of counsel for the record,

22· ·please?

23· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Yes, your Honor.· Good morning.· This

24· ·is Charles Glauberman, G-L-A-U-B, as in "boy," E-R-M-A-N,

25· ·on behalf of CalPERS.
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Good morning,

·2· ·Mr. Glauberman.

·3· · · · · · Ms. Schueneman, do you have anyone representing

·4· ·you today?· You're representing yourself; correct?

·5· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes.· Yes, your Honor.

·6· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· So

·7· ·Ms. Schueneman, before we get started, let me give you a

·8· ·little basic information as to how this proceeding is

·9· ·going to go; okay?

10· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Okay.· Yeah.

11· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· So as you heard -- as you

12· ·heard, we have a court reporter on the line recording

13· ·everything just as if we were all sitting in court, and

14· ·she's sitting in front of you at a stenography machine;

15· ·okay?

16· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Uh-huh.

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· So I'm going to ask if you

18· ·could please wait for a question to finish before

19· ·providing your answer.· You need to give a little bit of a

20· ·pause; otherwise, we're going to be speaking over each

21· ·other, and it makes her job essentially impossible.

22· · · · · · Now, in addition to that, I'm also taking my own

23· ·notes.· You may hear me typing a little bit.· So I'm

24· ·sometimes not the fastest typist, so I may ask you to slow

25· ·down -- okay -- or repeat yourself.· All right?
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·1· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Uh-huh.

·2· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Do you understand?· Okay.

·3· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I understand.

·4· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· So --

·5· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Your Honor?

·6· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Yes?

·7· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· My e-mails came back.· You know where

·8· ·it says the Daemon thing where it says invalid e-mail

·9· ·address?

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· Hold on

11· ·a second.

12· · · · · · Mr. Glauberman, can you just send her an e-mail

13· ·so she can reply with the documents?

14· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· I am doing that as we speak,

15· ·your Honor.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· So Ms. Schueneman,

17· ·let me explain a little bit about the hearing itself.· So

18· ·as you know, this is about whether or not you have an

19· ·effective earlier date of industrial disability

20· ·retirement.

21· · · · · · And Mr. Glauberman, are you on the same page as I

22· ·am with regard to burden of proof here?· That means that

23· ·Ms. Schueneman has the burden to prove that she's entitled

24· ·to that earlier date.

25· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Yes, your Honor.
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Has anything changed on

·2· ·that?

·3· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· No, your Honor.

·4· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· And has the California

·5· ·Department of Motor Vehicles filed a notice of defense or

·6· ·made any type of appearance in this matter?

·7· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· No, your Honor.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· So

·9· ·Ms. Schueneman, what that means is Mr. Glauberman --

10· ·typically parties with the burden present their evidence

11· ·first, but that's not what we're going to do here today

12· ·because it's the least efficient way to go.

13· · · · · · So what we're going to do is Mr. Glauberman is

14· ·going to present his evidence first.· He's going to do so

15· ·in the form of documents -- you already have that

16· ·packet -- and witness testimony.· And you will have an

17· ·opportunity to object to any of those documents, and

18· ·you'll have an opportunity to cross-examine his witnesses.

19· · · · · · After he's finished, then it's your opportunity

20· ·to present your evidence.· You may do so in the form of

21· ·your own testimony, any other witness testimony, and your

22· ·own documents as well.· And Mr. Glauberman has the same

23· ·rights as you with regard to cross-examination of

24· ·witnesses and objection to documents.

25· · · · · · Do you understand?
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·1· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Uh-huh.

·2· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· I'm going to need a "yes"

·3· ·or "no."

·4· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

·6· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· So if you have any

·8· ·questions about procedure, Ms. Schueneman, please let me

·9· ·know.· I'm happy to help as best I can.· I cannot,

10· ·however, provide you with any legal advice; okay?

11· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Okay.

12· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Okay.· So

13· ·before we get started, my preference is to mark documents.

14· · · · · · And Ms. Schueneman, did you get that e-mail from

15· ·Mr. Glauberman yet?

16· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yeah.· I just got it.

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· If you want to reply

18· ·to that and attach the documents --

19· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yeah.

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· -- that's probably the

21· ·easiest.

22· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yeah.· That's what I think, too.

23· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· So I'm going to

24· ·go ahead then -- Ms. Schueneman, let me know when you're

25· ·done sending that e-mail.
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·1· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Okay.· Oh, gosh.· I think I'm just so

·2· ·overwhelmed right now, I'm not thinking straight.· This

·3· ·is -- okay.

·4· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Ms. Schueneman?

·5· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes?

·6· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Have you sent the e-mail

·7· ·yet?

·8· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I'm doing it now.· Oh, boy.· Okay.

·9· ·Darn it.

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Did you send it?

11· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.· No.· I'm having a hard time.

12· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

13· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I'm just trying to -- I'm sorry.

14· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· That's okay.· Let's go

15· ·ahead and we'll mark the other documents.· We'll deal with

16· ·those after we're done doing that; okay?· All right.

17· · · · · · So do you have that packet in front of you?

18· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes.

19· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Sorry?

20· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I do, your Honor.

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· We're going to

22· ·mark those for identification purposes only; okay,

23· ·Ms. Schueneman?· I'm not admitting them at this point.

24· ·I'm just marking them for identification.

25· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Okay.
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· They should correspond

·2· ·to -- I'm assuming that's a tabbed notebook,

·3· ·Mr. Glauberman?

·4· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· So they

·6· ·should -- these numbers should correspond to the tabs,

·7· ·Ms. Schueneman; okay?

·8· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Okay.

·9· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· So the first document I'm

10· ·going to mark as Exhibit 1 is the statement of issues.

11· ·Hold on a second here.· It's a statement of issues.

12· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor --

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Yes?

14· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· -- about that document, when you

15· ·announced the case and the caption of the case as the

16· ·matter of appeal for earlier effective date of industrial

17· ·disability retirement --

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Yes.

19· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· -- industrial is an error.· It should

20· ·just be disability retirement, and that's indicated in the

21· ·statement of issues, but the caption there is incorrect.

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Oh, the caption is wrong.

23· ·Understood.· All right.

24· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I was wondering -- yeah.· That's very

25· ·confusing.
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right,

·2· ·Ms. Schueneman.· Okay.· So I'll note that this is really

·3· ·an effective date of -- or earlier effective date of

·4· ·disability retirement and not industrial disability

·5· ·retirement.

·6· · · · · · (Exhibit 1 was marked for identification.)

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Moving on.

·8· ·Exhibit 2 is the next document I'm going to mark, and it

·9· ·is the notice of hearing.· And it's one, two, three --

10· ·four pages in length, and it's actually Bates numbered.

11· ·So Ms. Schueneman, if you look at the top of the page --

12· ·top right corner of each of these pages --

13· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes.

14· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· -- it says PERS 015.

15· ·That's called a Bates number.

16· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Oh, okay.

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The document is Bates

18· ·numbered.· Do you see it?

19· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· You want me to go to 15?

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Yes.· So I'm marking

21· ·it for identification.· So the second document I'm going

22· ·to mark as Exhibit 2 has a Bates number on it on the top

23· ·right-hand corner that says PERS 015 on the first page,

24· ·and that goes all the way through to -- hold on --

25· ·PERS 019.· All that is going to be Exhibit 2.
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·1· · · · · · (Exhibit 2 was marked for identification.)

·2· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Okay.· Yeah.· 015 I've got.

·3· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Right.· Okay.· The next

·4· ·document I'm going to mark as Exhibit 3 is a notice of

·5· ·telephonic hearing.· It's Bates numbered at the top

·6· ·PERS 021 through -- an attached order converting it to

·7· ·telephonic hearing, the proof of service -- that's going

·8· ·to be all the way through PERS 028.

·9· · · · · · (Exhibit 3 was marked for identification.)

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

11· ·to mark is Exhibit 4.· It's a redacted document that is a

12· ·disability retirement election application for

13· ·Ms. Schueneman.· It's Bates marked at the top PERS 030

14· ·through PERS 041.· That's all going to be marked as

15· ·Exhibit 4.

16· · · · · · (Exhibit 4 was marked for identification.)

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

18· ·to mark for identification as Exhibit 5 is a letter dated

19· ·September 24, 2019, from CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman.· It's

20· ·Bates marked at the top right-hand corner PERS 043 through

21· ·044.· It's a two-page letter.· That's Exhibit 5.

22· · · · · · (Exhibit 5 was marked for identification.)

23· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

24· ·to mark as Exhibit 6 is a letter dated September 24, 2019,

25· ·to Ms. Schueneman.· It's Bates marked in the top
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·1· ·right-hand corner PERS 046, and it's a two-page letter

·2· ·with an attachment.· And the attachment is a single page,

·3· ·so the Bates marks go through PERS 048.· That's Exhibit 6.

·4· · · · · · (Exhibit 6 was marked for identification.)

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

·6· ·to mark -- are you there, Ms. Schueneman?

·7· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Oh, I'm here.· Yeah.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· The next document --

·9· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I'm at Exhibit 7 you're going into.

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Right.· The next document

11· ·I'm going to mark as Exhibit 7 is a September 24, 2019

12· ·letter to Ms. Schueneman with attachments I believe, and

13· ·it is Bates marked PERS 050 through 052.

14· · · · · · (Exhibit 7 was marked for identification.)

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Next document I'm going to

16· ·mark is Exhibit 8.· It's a letter dated January 31st,

17· ·2014, from CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman.· It's Bates marked

18· ·PERS 054.

19· · · · · · (Exhibit 8 was marked for identification.)

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Next document I'm going to

21· ·mark as Exhibit 9 is a disability retirement election

22· ·application guide, and it's a number of pages in length.

23· ·It's Bates marked PERS 056 through -- hold on.· It's

24· ·marked through PERS 129.· That's all going to be marked as

25· ·Exhibit 9.
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·1· · · · · · (Exhibit 9 was marked for identification.)

·2· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

·3· ·to mark as Exhibit 10 is a letter dated September 9, 2015,

·4· ·Bates marked PERS 131 through 132.

·5· · · · · · (Exhibit 10 was marked for identification.)

·6· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

·7· ·to mark as Exhibit 11 is a guide to service retirement

·8· ·election application document.· It is Bates marked

·9· ·PERS 133 through -- hold on a second -- through PERS 182.

10· ·That's all Exhibit 11.

11· · · · · · (Exhibit 11 was marked for identification.)

12· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

13· ·to mark as Exhibit 12 is a letter dated January 8, 2016,

14· ·Bates marked PERS 184 through PERS 189.· That's

15· ·Exhibit 12.

16· · · · · · (Exhibit 12 was marked for identification.)

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next stack of documents

18· ·I'm going to mark next as Exhibit 13 is a letter dated

19· ·August 1st, 2016, from CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman

20· ·Bates marked PERS 191, and that's a single page document.

21· · · · · · (Exhibit 13 was marked for identification.)

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

23· ·to mark as Exhibit 14 is a letter dated November 14, 2016,

24· ·from CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman.· It's Bates marked

25· ·PERS 193, and it's a single page document.
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·1· · · · · · (Exhibit 14 was marked for identification.)

·2· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

·3· ·to mark as Exhibit 15 is a letter dated April 14, 2017,

·4· ·from CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman, and it's Bates marked

·5· ·PERS 195 through 198.

·6· · · · · · (Exhibit 15 was marked for identification.)

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

·8· ·to mark as Exhibit 16 is a letter dated October 4, 2017,

·9· ·from CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman.· It's Bates marked

10· ·PERS 200, and it's actually a disability retirement

11· ·election application.· It's blank, and it continues

12· ·through to -- just a second.· It continues through to

13· ·PERS 209.· That's all going to be marked as Exhibit 16.

14· · · · · · (Exhibit 16 was marked for identification.)

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'm going

16· ·to mark as Exhibit 17 is a letter dated June 5, 2019, from

17· ·CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman.· It's Bates marked PERS 211

18· ·through 212.

19· · · · · · (Exhibit 17 was marked for identification.)

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'll mark

21· ·as Exhibit 18 is a letter from CalPERS dated June 6, 2019,

22· ·to Ms. Schueneman Bates marked PERS 214 through 215.

23· · · · · · (Exhibit 18 was marked for identification.)

24· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'll mark

25· ·as Exhibit 19 is a letter dated July 18, 2019, from
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·1· ·CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman Bates marked PERS 217 through

·2· ·218.

·3· · · · · · (Exhibit 19 was marked for identification.)

·4· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'll mark

·5· ·as Exhibit 20 is a typed letter that is -- appears to be

·6· ·undated.· It's got a fax date on it of 8/5/2019, and it is

·7· ·one, two -- three pages in length.· And it is Bates marked

·8· ·PERS 220 to 222, and I'll mark that as Exhibit 20.

·9· · · · · · (Exhibit 20 was marked for identification.)

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I will

11· ·mark as Exhibit 21 is a letter from CalPERS dated July 18,

12· ·2019, to Ms. Schueneman and the Department of Motor

13· ·Vehicles, and it is Bates marked PERS 224 through 226.

14· · · · · · (Exhibit 21 was marked for identification.)

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· The next document I'll mark

16· ·as Exhibit 22 is a letter dated August 22nd, 2019, that

17· ·has been redacted, and it is to Ms. Alka Nguyen,

18· ·N-G-U-Y-E-N.· And it's Bates marked PERS 228 through 229.

19· ·I'll mark that as Exhibit 22.

20· · · · · · (Exhibit 22 was marked for identification.)

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· And the last document I'll

22· ·mark as Exhibit 23 is a customer touch-point report for

23· ·Regina Schueneman from CalPERS.· It's Bates marked PERS

24· ·231 through 245, and that's marked as Exhibit 23.

25· · · · · · (Exhibit 23 was marked for identification.)
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any further documents to

·2· ·mark, Mr. Glauberman?

·3· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Nothing further at this time,

·4· ·your Honor.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.

·6· · · · · · Ms. Schueneman, are you there?

·7· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes, I'm here.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· You think if I gave

·9· ·you a couple of minutes to try to send that e-mail to

10· ·Mr. Glauberman you'd be able to get that out for us?

11· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Could he check and make sure that he

12· ·got it?

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Oh, did you send it

14· ·already?

15· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I think I did.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Mr. Glauberman?

17· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I don't think it came back again.

18· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· I have not received anything yet.

19· ·I'm checking right now as you speak.· And I don't see it

20· ·yet, but I will keep my eye out for it.

21· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yeah.· There's three, and it didn't

22· ·come back, so --

23· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· Hold on

24· ·here.· Let's see if I can find a way to get that.

25· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I think it's right.· Oh, my gosh.
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Ms. Schueneman, did you

·2· ·reply to the e-mail that he sent to you?

·3· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Well, what -- well, yeah.· I've

·4· ·got -- I've got his e-mail.· I had to get, you know, what

·5· ·I sent, so I was trying to change what I sent.· I mean,

·6· ·I -- okay.· Whatever I sent by -- instead of putting a

·7· ·"dot," I put an "at" by mistake.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· So instead of typing

·9· ·in his e-mail address -- Ms. Schueneman, instead of typing

10· ·in his e-mail address, can you just hit "reply" to the

11· ·e-mail that he sent to you and attach those three

12· ·documents?

13· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Oh, okay.· Can I -- okay.· So --

14· ·okay.· And then -- okay.· Okay.· Reply -- I don't know how

15· ·to attach them, though.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· You don't know how

17· ·to -- can you drop and drag?

18· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Like I've got his address -- his

19· ·correct address, but what I need to do now is -- the

20· ·documents that I already sent I'm trying to resend with

21· ·the correct e-mail address, but that didn't work either.

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· Hold on

23· ·a second.· Let's go off the record for about five seconds.

24· · · · · · (Off the record)

25· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· We are back on the record

https://www.kennedycourtreporters.com


·1· ·after the break and some clarification of documents.· I'm

·2· ·now going to mark Respondent's documents in order, and the

·3· ·first document I'm going to mark as Exhibit A, as in

·4· ·"apple," is a single page letter dated March 21st, 2017,

·5· ·from Ms. Schueneman to the San Marcos DMV.· I'll mark that

·6· ·document as Exhibit A, as in "apple."

·7· · · · · · (Exhibit A was marked for identification.)

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· And the Department of

·9· ·Motor Vehicles document I'm going to mark as Exhibit B is

10· ·an e-mail from Jenny Schueneman -- well, it's actually a

11· ·letter actually from Scripps Clinic Carmel Valley Family

12· ·Medicine for a date of visit 11/12/2019.· It is three

13· ·pages in length.· And the last page it says, "Sent from my

14· ·iPhone," but it's a letter from Adam Christopher Rhodes.

15· ·I'm going to mark that entire document as Exhibit B, as in

16· ·"boy."

17· · · · · · (Exhibit B was marked for identification.)

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· And then the last document

19· ·I have to mark is -- I'll mark as Exhibit C, as in "cat."

20· ·And it is an e-mail from Ms. Schueneman to the Law Offices

21· ·of Cohen & Blitz, and it is a two-page document.· I'll

22· ·mark that as Exhibit C, as in "cat."

23· · · · · · (Exhibit C was marked for identification.)

24· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Ms. Schueneman,

25· ·any further documents you want to rely on today that we
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·1· ·haven't marked?

·2· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor.

·3· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· So with

·4· ·that, Mr. Glauberman, would you like to provide an opening

·5· ·statement?

·6· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· No opening statement, your Honor.

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Ms. Schueneman,

·8· ·you're entitled to an opening statement, which is

·9· ·essentially nothing more than a summary of what it is

10· ·you're going to testify about, but I warn you I can't

11· ·consider it as evidence because you're not yet under oath.

12· ·As a result, most folks choose to waive their opening and

13· ·provide me that evidence once they are under oath, but I

14· ·give you the choice of how you want to proceed.

15· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.· That's fine.· I'll wait, too.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Mr. Glauberman, your

17· ·first witness?

18· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you, your Honor.· CalPERS calls

19· ·Timothy Grigsby as its witness.

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Mr. Grigsby,

21· ·are you there?

22· · · ·MR. GRIGSBY:· Yes, I am.

23· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· I'm going to place you

24· ·under oath.· I know this is a little strange because we're

25· ·over the phone, but I'm going to ask you to raise your
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·1· ·right hand for me.

·2· · · ·MR. GRIGSBY:· Okay.

·3

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · TIMOTHY GRIGSBY,

·5· ·called as a witness, having first been duly sworn, was

·6· ·examined and testified as follows:

·7· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, I do.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· I'm going to

·9· ·ask you to state and spell your full name for me, please.

10· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Sure.· Timothy, T-I-M-O-T-H-Y, and my

11· ·last name is Grigsby, G-R-I-G-S-B, as in "boy," Y.

12· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Thank you, Mr. Grigsby.

13· · · · · · Mr. Glauberman?

14· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you, your Honor.

15

16· · · · · · · · · · · ·DIRECT EXAMINATION

17· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

18· · · ·Q· · Where do you work, Mr. Grigsby?

19· · · ·A· · I work for CalPERS.

20· · · ·Q· · How long have you worked for CalPERS?

21· · · ·A· · Since September of 2016.

22· · · ·Q· · What is your current position at CalPERS?

23· · · ·A· · I am an AGPA which is otherwise known as

24· ·associate governmental program analyst.

25· · · ·Q· · What are your general duties as an AGPA?
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·1· · · ·A· · What I do is I review incoming IDR and DR

·2· ·applications, and what we do is we determine if they are

·3· ·eligible for IDR or disability retirement.

·4· · · ·Q· · And you said IDR or DR.· A moment ago you said

·5· ·disability retirement.

·6· · · · · · Does "DR" stand for disability retirement?

·7· · · ·A· · Yes.

·8· · · ·Q· · And "IDR" stands for industrial disability

·9· ·retirement?

10· · · ·A· · Yes.

11· · · ·Q· · And what is your role in reviewing applications

12· ·for disability retirement or industrial disability

13· ·retirement?

14· · · ·A· · What we do is I -- once -- once the determination

15· ·side makes their adjudication on the case, if a member

16· ·appeals that case, what I do is I take that, I review the

17· ·contents of the member's appeal, and then what I do is I

18· ·gather the file to send it up for administrative hearing

19· ·to --

20· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· I didn't hear what you

22· ·said.· I apologize.

23· · · · · · Ms. Winn, I know you're trying to get

24· ·clarification.

25· · · · · · Mr. Grigsby, I didn't hear the last part of what
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·1· ·you said.· Can you repeat yourself?

·2· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Sure.· No problem.· I just said what I

·3· ·do is I get the member -- when a member is denied, I get

·4· ·their appeal, I review the basis of their appeal, and I

·5· ·gather the facts regarding their appeal from their file in

·6· ·the My CalPERS system and send it up to our legal office

·7· ·to set for administrative hearing.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Before you move on,

·9· ·Mr. Glauberman, I know, Ms. Winn, you're probably hearing

10· ·my keyboard unfortunately because it's right next to the

11· ·speaker.

12· · · · · · Is it distracting you too much?

13· · · ·THE REPORTER:· No, your Honor.

14· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· If it

15· ·does, let me know, and I'll mute myself.· But it makes it

16· ·difficult for me to mute and unmute when I need to talk,

17· ·but just let me know.

18· · · · · · All right.· Mr. Glauberman?

19· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you, your Honor.

20· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

21· · · ·Q· · Mr. Grigsby, are you familiar with the appeal for

22· ·Ms. Schueneman?

23· · · ·A· · Yes, I am.

24· · · ·Q· · Have you reviewed the appeal file for

25· ·Ms. Schueneman?
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·1· · · ·A· · Yes, I have.

·2· · · ·Q· · And in general can you just give a brief

·3· ·explanation of Ms. Schueneman's -- the subject of

·4· ·Ms. Schueneman's appeal?

·5· · · ·A· · Yes.· What Ms. Schueneman is wanting to do -- she

·6· ·is wanting an early effective retirement date for her

·7· ·disability retirement.

·8· · · ·Q· · So Ms. Schueneman has already been granted a

·9· ·disability retirement by CalPERS?

10· · · ·A· · Yes.

11· · · ·Q· · So what does it mean she wants an earlier

12· ·effective retirement date?

13· · · ·A· · We needed to determine if we can grant

14· ·Ms. Schueneman's request for an early effective retirement

15· ·date.· She submitted her application June 3rd, 2019, and

16· ·she requested an earlier retirement date of September 8,

17· ·2015.

18· · · ·Q· · Is somebody ordinarily able to -- a CalPERS

19· ·member or retiree -- are they ordinarily able to choose a

20· ·retirement date that's four years earlier than when they

21· ·filed their application?

22· · · ·A· · They can, but we have to go back and see if we

23· ·can grant that request.

24· · · ·Q· · Are there rules or laws that dictate when

25· ·someone's retirement date will be?
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·1· · · ·A· · Yes.· We use Government Code 21252, which is the

·2· ·earlier effective retirement date code.· And basically

·3· ·what it says is if the application is submitted more than

·4· ·nine months from the discontinuance of the state service,

·5· ·which Ms. Schueneman's --

·6· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· I'm going to

·7· ·slow you down.· Mr. Grigsby, I cannot type that fast.

·8· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I'm sorry.

·9· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· You're going a little fast.

10· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Sorry about that.

11· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Submitted more than nine

12· ·months prior to --

13· · · ·THE WITNESS:· If the application is submitted more

14· ·than nine months from the discontinuation of state

15· ·service --

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

17· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay.· The effective retirement date

18· ·shall be the first date -- first day of the month in which

19· ·the application is received by CalPERS.

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

21· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

22· · · ·Q· · And you stated that Ms. Schueneman's retirement

23· ·application was in June of 2019?

24· · · ·A· · Yes.

25· · · ·Q· · So based on the Government Code you recently
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·1· ·described, when would her effective retirement date be

·2· ·based on that section?

·3· · · ·A· · It would be June 1st, 2019.

·4· · · ·Q· · And so Ms. Schueneman wants a retirement date

·5· ·then in 2015?

·6· · · ·A· · That's correct.

·7· · · ·Q· · So is CalPERS able to give her that date?

·8· · · ·A· · What we do -- we go back and do another

·9· ·Government Code.· We go to our mistake statute, which is

10· ·Government Code 20160, to determine if mistake can be

11· ·corrected.

12· · · ·Q· · What do you mean by mistake?

13· · · ·A· · We want to see if we can grant the member an

14· ·early retirement date of September 2015.

15· · · ·Q· · And was CalPERS able to do that here?

16· · · ·A· · No, we were not.

17· · · ·Q· · Why not?

18· · · ·A· · Because the application submitted by

19· ·Ms. Schueneman was not received by CalPERS within nine

20· ·months of discontinuation of --

21· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

22· · · ·THE WITNESS:· -- state service.

23· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

24· · · ·Q· · When did Ms. Schueneman discontinue her state

25· ·service?
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·1· · · ·A· · September 9th, 2015.

·2· · · ·Q· · You've talked about the mistake statute, and you

·3· ·said CalPERS reviews for a mistake.

·4· · · · · · Like what is CalPERS looking for?

·5· · · ·A· · What we do is we send out information to the

·6· ·member and to the employer.· We send out letters

·7· ·requesting additional information to see if we can grant

·8· ·an early effective retirement date.

·9· · · ·Q· · What sort of additional information?

10· · · ·A· · We send out letters to both the member and to the

11· ·employer.

12· · · ·Q· · CalPERS sends out letters.· What kind of

13· ·information is CalPERS looking for, though?

14· · · ·A· · We're looking to see basically when the member

15· ·knew about disability retirement and if it -- if she knew

16· ·about disability retirement in a reasonable amount of time

17· ·from when she submitted her application.

18· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to -- first I'm going to make sure

19· ·that you have an exhibit binder in front of you.

20· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

21· · · ·Q· · And have you reviewed the binder before the

22· ·hearing today?

23· · · ·A· · Yes, I have.

24· · · ·Q· · And the documents in the binder from what you

25· ·reviewed are documents pertaining to Ms. Schueneman's
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·1· ·account with CalPERS?

·2· · · ·A· · Yes.

·3· · · ·Q· · And how are the documents for Ms. Schueneman's

·4· ·account maintained by CalPERS?

·5· · · ·A· · They are stored in our My CalPERS system.· We

·6· ·have various documents received stored in the My CalPERS

·7· ·system as well as communications between the member, the

·8· ·employer.· Any time that a member or an employer will call

·9· ·into CalPERS, they will speak to a call center

10· ·representative, and those interactions are documented in

11· ·our customer touch-point notes typically right after the

12· ·conversation is made.

13· · · ·Q· · And when it comes to letters and correspondence

14· ·related to an individual member like Ms. Schueneman, are

15· ·those saved in the individual file with CalPERS?

16· · · ·A· · Yes.

17· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to Exhibit 8 in CalPERS'

18· ·exhibit binder?· And it's page number PERS 054.

19· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Which exhibit was that?

20· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Exhibit 8, your Honor.

21· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

22· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

23· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.· This is a cover sheet dated

24· ·January 31st, 2014, a letter to Ms. Schueneman showing

25· ·that we mailed a guide to completing a Disability
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·1· ·Retirement Publication 35 to Ms. Schueneman on that date.

·2· · · ·Q· · What's a guide to completing disability

·3· ·retirement?

·4· · · ·A· · It gives the member information about how to

·5· ·complete a disability retirement application, what forms

·6· ·are necessary for a complete disability retirement

·7· ·package, and the time frames in order to get those

·8· ·documents in to CalPERS.

·9· · · ·Q· · And is this letter -- the January 31, 2014

10· ·letter -- is this a standard letter that CalPERS sends

11· ·with that publication -- with that guide?

12· · · ·A· · Yes.· It's a cover letter showing that we mailed

13· ·it out through our My CalPERS system to the member.

14· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of the

15· ·letter from January 31, 2014, for Ms. Schueneman's

16· ·account?

17· · · ·A· · Yes.

18· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to Exhibit 9 in CalPERS'

19· ·exhibit binder, page PERS 056?

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Mr. Glauberman, do you want

21· ·to admit these as we go along or just at the end?

22· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· We can admit them as we go along.

23· ·Yeah.· So your Honor, CalPERS requests admission of

24· ·Exhibit 8 into evidence.

25· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Ms. Schueneman, are
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·1· ·you there?

·2· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes.

·3· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Do you have any objections

·4· ·to my receiving Exhibit 8 into evidence?

·5· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Well, no.· I understand it all is the

·6· ·disability packet.

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· 8 is admitted.

·8· · · · · · (Exhibit 8 was received in evidence.)

·9· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Mr. Glauberman?

10· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you, your Honor.

11· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

12· · · ·Q· · Mr. Grigsby, I mentioned it before we admitted

13· ·the document, but can you turn to Exhibit 9, please,

14· ·PERS 056?· And let me know when you're there.

15· · · ·A· · I am there.

16· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document -- this exhibit?

17· · · ·A· · Yes.· This is the actual Publication 35 booklet

18· ·that was mailed to Ms. Schueneman.

19· · · ·Q· · And is there any way to tell if this document is

20· ·dated or, you know, if it corresponds with the letter --

21· ·the timing of the letter, or is it a later version of the

22· ·document?

23· · · ·A· · You can tell the date of the document on the

24· ·publication of the version it is.· It's on PERS 129.

25· · · ·Q· · You're at the very last page of the exhibit now?
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·1· · · ·A· · Very last page of the exhibit, and it's the

·2· ·Publication 35 which has the issue date of December 2012,

·3· ·which is the effective date of this publication at that

·4· ·time.

·5· · · ·Q· · Back to the beginning of the publication, is

·6· ·there any information in this publication that indicates

·7· ·when somebody should apply for a disability retirement

·8· ·from CalPERS' perspective?

·9· · · ·A· · Yes, it does.

10· · · ·Q· · Where are you looking in this publication for

11· ·that information?

12· · · ·A· · If you can turn to PERS 060, and we're looking at

13· ·the second paragraph.

14· · · ·Q· · And I don't need you to read the entire paragraph

15· ·out loud, but can you explain what this indicates about

16· ·applying for disability retirement?

17· · · ·A· · It's basically to state that you should apply for

18· ·disability or industrial disability retirement as soon as

19· ·you believe you're unable to -- unable to perform your job

20· ·duties.

21· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to page PERS 062 in this

22· ·exhibit?

23· · · ·A· · Okay.

24· · · ·Q· · And in the margin -- the far right margin of this

25· ·page, there's a little paragraph.
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·1· · · · · · Do you see that?

·2· · · ·A· · Yes.

·3· · · ·Q· · And so that indicates that CalPERS doesn't want

·4· ·people to wait for a workers' comp claim to settle before

·5· ·people apply for disability retirement?

·6· · · ·A· · That's correct.· You should not wait for your

·7· ·workers' compensation claim to settle before you apply for

·8· ·disability retirement through CalPERS.

·9· · · ·Q· · Okay.· Is this Exhibit 9 a true and accurate copy

10· ·of Pub. 35 from 2014 that was sent to Ms. Schueneman?

11· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

12· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

13· ·admission of Exhibit 9 into evidence.

14· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Ms. Schueneman, do you have

15· ·any objections to my receiving Exhibit 9?

16· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.· I --

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Thank you.· 9 is

18· ·admitted.

19· · · · · · (Exhibit 9 was received in evidence.)

20· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

21· · · ·Q· · In Exhibit 9 is there -- if I can have you turn

22· ·to page PERS 090.

23· · · ·A· · Okay.· I am there.

24· · · ·Q· · And on page 090 that's a blank disability

25· ·retirement application?
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·1· · · ·A· · Yes.· This is what is included inside the

·2· ·Publication 35.· It's a blank disability retirement

·3· ·application.

·4· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to Exhibit 10 in CalPERS'

·5· ·exhibit binder?

·6· · · ·A· · Okay.

·7· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?· I'm on PERS 131.

·8· · · ·A· · Okay.

·9· · · ·Q· · You're on 131?

10· · · ·A· · Yes, I am.

11· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

12· · · ·A· · Yes.· This is another cover letter dated

13· ·September 9, 2015, showing that we mailed out another

14· ·Publication 35 for disability retirement application as

15· ·well as a service retirement application Pub. 43 to

16· ·Ms. Schueneman.

17· · · ·Q· · And what's the service retirement publication?

18· · · ·A· · It's a general guide as well to how to apply for

19· ·service retirement.

20· · · ·Q· · Is this a true and accurate copy of the letter

21· ·that went out with the publication on September 9, 2015,

22· ·to Ms. Schueneman?

23· · · ·A· · Yes.

24· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

25· ·admission of Exhibit 10 into evidence.
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objections,

·2· ·Ms. Schueneman?

·3· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, because I don't remember all that

·4· ·anyway, you know.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· 10 is admitted.

·6· · · · · · (Exhibit 10 was received in evidence.)

·7· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you, your Honor.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· 10 is admitted.

·9· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

10· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to page PERS 133,

11· ·Mr. Grigsby, in Exhibit 11, please?

12· · · ·A· · I am there.

13· · · ·Q· · And do you recognize this document?

14· · · ·A· · Yes.· This is our Publication 43 which is the

15· ·service retirement election application publication that

16· ·was sent to Ms. Schueneman.

17· · · ·Q· · And so what sort of information is included in

18· ·this packet?

19· · · ·A· · When you can apply for service retirement.· It

20· ·also mentions in there --

21· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Yeah.· I hear a lot of

23· ·paper flipping.

24· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Sorry about that.

25· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.
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·1· · · ·THE WITNESS:· If you can turn to page PERS 138.

·2· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

·3· · · ·Q· · Why turn to page 138, Mr. Grigsby?

·4· · · ·A· · Because it talks about there in the bottom of

·5· ·section 2 in the notes section -- it gives a little bit of

·6· ·information about an early effective retirement date and

·7· ·what your effective retirement will be based on --

·8· ·time frames.· So it mentions effective date of retirement

·9· ·cannot be earlier than your last day on payroll as long as

10· ·your application is received by CalPERS within nine

11· ·months.· If not -- if it's not received within nine

12· ·months, the application -- the retirement date can be no

13· ·earlier than the 1st of the month in which CalPERS

14· ·receives the application.

15· · · ·Q· · So that's kind of restating that section that you

16· ·were talking about earlier -- I think it was 21252 --

17· ·regarding the effective date of retirement?

18· · · ·A· · That is correct.

19· · · ·Q· · Is this Exhibit 11 a true and accurate copy of

20· ·the Publication 43 that was sent to Ms. Schueneman in

21· ·2015?

22· · · ·A· · That is correct.

23· · · ·Q· · And we can tell when this publication was from

24· ·based on the last page on page PERS 182 similar to how we

25· ·can tell on the previous publication we looked at?
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·1· · · ·A· · Yes.

·2· · · ·Q· · So on this one, PERS 182, there's a date of

·3· ·March 2015?

·4· · · ·A· · Yes.· This would be a publication that was in

·5· ·effect at that time.

·6· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

·7· ·admission of Exhibit 11 into evidence.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

·9· ·Ms. Schueneman?

10· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.

11· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· 11 is admitted.

12· · · · · · (Exhibit 11 was received in evidence.)

13· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

14· · · ·Q· · Similar, Mr. Grigsby, to the Publication 35 that

15· ·had the disability retirement application, the

16· ·Publication 43 has copies of the retirement application?

17· · · ·A· · Yes.

18· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to Exhibit 12?· And that's

19· ·PERS 184.

20· · · ·A· · Okay.

21· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

22· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

23· · · ·Q· · What is this document?

24· · · ·A· · This is another cover letter dated January 8,

25· ·2016, to Ms. Schueneman showing that we mailed out another
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·1· ·Publication 35 disability retirement election application

·2· ·publication to her.

·3· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of the

·4· ·letter showing that the document was sent?

·5· · · ·A· · Yes.

·6· · · ·Q· · And PERS 18 -- or PERS 185 appears to be an

·7· ·excerpt of the Publication 35?

·8· · · ·A· · Yes.

·9· · · ·Q· · And so is this a different version in Exhibit 12

10· ·of the Publication 35 than was in the previous exhibit --

11· ·I believe it was Exhibit 9?

12· · · ·A· · Yes.

13· · · ·Q· · You can tell the different version by looking at

14· ·the date on page PERS 189?

15· · · ·A· · That's correct.

16· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

17· · · ·THE WITNESS:· March 2015 is the effective date of this

18· ·publication that was sent at that time.

19· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

20· · · ·Q· · And on page 3 of this -- or on page 3 at the

21· ·bottom, but it's PERS 188 in the top right corner.

22· ·There's language in this publication that appears to

23· ·almost mirror the language in the previous Pub. 35 about

24· ·the timing of filing a disability retirement application?

25· · · ·A· · That's correct.· It also mentions that she
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·1· ·should -- he or she should apply for disability retirement

·2· ·as soon as they believe they're unable to perform their

·3· ·job duties.

·4· · · ·Q· · Are the documents in Exhibit 12, the cover letter

·5· ·and then the excerpt from the Publication 35 -- are these

·6· ·true and accurate representations of documents that were

·7· ·sent to Ms. Schueneman?

·8· · · ·A· · Yes.

·9· · · ·Q· · And maintained by CalPERS?

10· · · ·A· · Yes.

11· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

12· ·admission of Exhibit 12 into evidence.

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

14· ·Ms. Schueneman?

15· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Exhibit 12 is

17· ·admitted.

18· · · · · · (Exhibit 12 was received in evidence.)

19· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

20· · · ·Q· · Excuse me.· Mr. Grigsby, can I have you turn to

21· ·the next exhibit in the binder, Exhibit 13, page PERS 191?

22· · · ·A· · Okay.· I'm there.

23· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

24· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

25· · · ·Q· · What is this?
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·1· · · ·A· · This is another cover letter dated August 1st,

·2· ·2015, sent to Ms. Schueneman showing that we sent another

·3· ·Publication 35 disability retirement election application

·4· ·to her.

·5· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of the cover

·6· ·letter for that publication?

·7· · · ·A· · Yes.

·8· · · ·Q· · And this letter is maintained by CalPERS?

·9· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

10· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

11· ·admission of Exhibit 13 into evidence.

12· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

13· ·Ms. Schueneman?

14· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.· I was in the hospital, so no.

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Exhibit 13 is

16· ·admitted.

17· · · · · · (Exhibit 13 was received in evidence.)

18· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

19· · · ·Q· · And Exhibit 14 -- if I can have you turn to

20· ·that -- page PERS 193.

21· · · ·A· · Okay.

22· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

23· · · ·A· · Yes.

24· · · ·Q· · And what is this?

25· · · ·A· · This is a cover letter dated November 14, 2015,
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·1· ·to Ms. Schueneman showing that we mailed out a

·2· ·Publication 35 disability retirement election application

·3· ·to her.

·4· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of the

·5· ·letter that accompanied Publication 35?

·6· · · ·A· · Yes.

·7· · · ·Q· · And we've reviewed a handful of these Pub. 35

·8· ·letters that went out.

·9· · · · · · And it's your testimony that with each of these

10· ·letters a Publication 35 was sent out with the -- with the

11· ·letter?

12· · · ·A· · Yes.

13· · · ·Q· · Did CalPERS receive any disability retirement

14· ·applications in the time following the sending of these

15· ·letters and publications?

16· · · ·A· · No.

17· · · ·Q· · Did CalPERS receive a service retirement

18· ·application from Ms. Schueneman following the

19· ·Publication 43 that was sent?

20· · · ·A· · No.

21· · · ·Q· · Do you know when the first time CalPERS received

22· ·an application from Ms. Schueneman was?

23· · · ·A· · Yes.

24· · · ·Q· · When was that?

25· · · ·A· · June 3rd, 2019.
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·1· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

·2· ·admission of Exhibit 14 into evidence.

·3· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

·4· ·Ms. Schueneman?

·5· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.

·6· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· 14 is admitted.

·7· · · · · · (Exhibit 14 was received in evidence.)

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· I'm not sure what that

·9· ·noise is, but there's something rubbing against the phone

10· ·or some noise.· Okay.

11· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

12· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to Exhibit 15, Mr. Grigsby,

13· ·page PERS 195?

14· · · ·A· · Yes.

15· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

16· · · ·A· · Yes.

17· · · ·Q· · What is this?

18· · · ·A· · This is an options letter sent out to

19· ·Ms. Schueneman dated April 4, 2017.· It is a letter

20· ·generated by the system when we have not received any

21· ·updated payroll from the member in a period of time.· I do

22· ·not know the exact period of time, but it is a system-

23· ·generated letter.

24· · · ·Q· · When you say updated payroll, what do you mean?

25· · · ·A· · When CalPERS does not receive any updated payroll
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·1· ·information to update her last day on pay, CalPERS sends

·2· ·out an options letter in the future giving them

·3· ·information about what to do at separation from CalPERS

·4· ·employment.

·5· · · ·Q· · So when you say updated payroll, does that mean

·6· ·an employer is no longer reporting payroll to CalPERS for

·7· ·an individual?

·8· · · ·A· · Correct.

·9· · · ·Q· · So this is a true and accurate copy of that

10· ·letter from CalPERS to Ms. Schueneman?

11· · · ·A· · Yes.

12· · · ·Q· · Is there anything in this letter about disability

13· ·retirement or service retirement?

14· · · ·A· · Yes.· It's going to be on the next page,

15· ·PERS 196.

16· · · ·Q· · Can you just point to the portion of the page

17· ·that you're referring to?

18· · · ·A· · Yes.· It's going to be about the middle of the

19· ·page.· You'll see a bold sentence that says, "If you have

20· ·at least five years of service credit and are under the

21· ·age 50."· If you look at that last sentence, it says, "If

22· ·you are disabled regardless of age, you may be eligible

23· ·for disability retirement."

24· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

25· ·introduction of Exhibit 15 into evidence.
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

·2· ·Ms. Schueneman?

·3· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.· I just have a question on that

·4· ·page.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Well, you'll get an

·6· ·opportunity to testify about that when it's your turn --

·7· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Okay.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· -- and to cross-examine as

·9· ·well.· So 15 is admitted.· All right.

10· · · · · · (Exhibit 15 was received in evidence.)

11· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you, your Honor.

12· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

13· · · ·Q· · Mr. Grigsby, can I have you turn to Exhibit 16,

14· ·please, PERS 200?

15· · · ·A· · Okay.

16· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

17· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

18· · · ·Q· · What is this?

19· · · ·A· · This is a blank disability retirement election

20· ·application.· It was mailed to Ms. Schueneman on

21· ·October 4, 2017.

22· · · ·Q· · Mailed by CalPERS?

23· · · ·A· · Yes.

24· · · ·Q· · And do you know if CalPERS received the

25· ·disability retirement application from Ms. Schueneman
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·1· ·following the mailing of this letter?

·2· · · ·A· · CalPERS did not receive an application from

·3· ·Ms. Schueneman.

·4· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of a blank

·5· ·application CalPERS sent to Ms. Schueneman October 4,

·6· ·2017?

·7· · · ·A· · Yes.

·8· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

·9· ·admission of Exhibit 16 into evidence.

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

11· ·Ms. Schueneman?

12· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· 16 is admitted.

14· · · · · · (Exhibit 16 was received in evidence.)

15· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

16· · · ·Q· · Mr. Grigsby, can I have you turn to Exhibit 17 in

17· ·CalPERS' exhibit binder?· Page PERS 211.

18· · · · · · Do you recognize this document?

19· · · ·A· · Yes.

20· · · ·Q· · And what is this?

21· · · ·A· · This is a letter dated June 5th to Ms. Schueneman

22· ·letting her know that we received her application for

23· ·service retirement pending disability retirement.

24· · · ·Q· · What does that mean?· Service retirement pending

25· ·disability retirement?
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·1· · · ·A· · It means that a member will want to start their

·2· ·service retirement and then wait for the adjudication

·3· ·process for their disability retirement.

·4· · · ·Q· · So CalPERS can grant someone a service retirement

·5· ·while they're waiting to find out if they're going to

·6· ·qualify for disability retirement?

·7· · · ·A· · That's correct.

·8· · · ·Q· · If I can have you turn to PERS 030, Exhibit 4, in

·9· ·CalPERS' exhibit binder.

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Which exhibit was that,

11· ·Mr. Glauberman?

12· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· 4, your Honor.

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Exhibit 4?

14· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

16· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Oh.

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Hold on.· Ms. Schueneman?

18· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes?

19· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Are you there?

20· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· So --

22· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.· I'm here.

23· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right,

24· ·Mr. Glauberman.

25· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you.
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·1· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

·2· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document, Mr. Grigsby?

·3· · · ·A· · Yes.· This is the disability retirement election

·4· ·application that was submitted by Ms. Schueneman, and it

·5· ·was received by CalPERS on June 3rd, 2019.

·6· · · ·Q· · You mentioned a moment ago a service retirement

·7· ·application pending disability retirement.

·8· · · ·A· · Correct.

·9· · · ·Q· · Is that what this is?

10· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

11· · · ·Q· · How can you tell?

12· · · ·A· · She checkbox'd the application type in the top of

13· ·the retirement application:· service pending disability

14· ·retirement.

15· · · ·Q· · And there's a date in the middle of the page:

16· ·9/8/2015.

17· · · · · · Do you see that?

18· · · ·A· · Yes.

19· · · ·Q· · What's that date?

20· · · ·A· · That is Ms. Schueneman's requested retirement

21· ·date.

22· · · ·Q· · So that's the date that is the subject of this

23· ·appeal?

24· · · ·A· · That's correct.

25· · · ·Q· · And is that when Ms. Schueneman stopped working
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·1· ·for her employer, the Department of Motor Vehicles?

·2· · · ·A· · She stopped -- or according to the employer and

·3· ·according to CalPERS, her separation date was September 9,

·4· ·2015, one day after her requested retirement date.

·5· · · ·Q· · And this is a true and accurate copy of the

·6· ·application CalPERS received for Ms. Schueneman's

·7· ·disability retirement request?

·8· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

·9· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

10· ·introduction of Exhibit 4 into evidence.

11· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

12· ·Ms. Schueneman?

13· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Oh, okay.· I got kind of confused.

14· ·Okay.· Sure.· Okay.· I thought we were at -- okay.

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Do you have any objection

16· ·to Exhibit 4?

17· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yeah.· I didn't realize we were back

18· ·on 4 again.

19· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Do you have any

20· ·objection to my receiving Exhibit 4?

21· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· 4 is admitted.

23· · · · · · (Exhibit 4 was received in evidence.)

24· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

25· · · ·Q· · So based on that application, Mr. Grigsby,
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·1· ·Ms. Schueneman was in fact given a disability retirement

·2· ·by CalPERS?

·3· · · ·A· · Yes, she was.

·4· · · ·Q· · Okay.· And if I can have you turn back.· We were

·5· ·on 17 I believe, PERS 211.

·6· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Exhibit 17?

·7· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Exhibit 17, your Honor, PERS 211.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

·9· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

10· · · ·Q· · So this was a letter that was sent out,

11· ·Mr. Grigsby, by CalPERS after it received the disability

12· ·retirement application?

13· · · ·A· · Yes.

14· · · ·Q· · And this is a letter that was generated by the

15· ·system after CalPERS receives something like a disability

16· ·retirement application or a service retirement

17· ·application?

18· · · ·A· · Yes.

19· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of that

20· ·letter for Ms. Schueneman's account?

21· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

22· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

23· ·introduction of Exhibit 17 into evidence.

24· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

25· ·Ms. Schueneman?
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·1· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.

·2· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· 17 is admitted.

·3· · · · · · (Exhibit 17 was received in evidence.)

·4· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

·5· · · ·Q· · And Mr. Grigsby, if I can have you look at the

·6· ·first sentence on page PERS 211 in Exhibit 17, it

·7· ·indicates the effective date of that retirement

·8· ·application or the retirement would be June 1st, 2019.

·9· · · · · · Do you see that?

10· · · ·A· · That's correct, yes.

11· · · ·Q· · Why is that the effective date of the retirement

12· ·if the application requests a date of 2015?

13· · · ·A· · Because of the Government Code 21252.· The

14· ·application was received more than nine months from the

15· ·discontinuation of state service, so we used the 1st --

16· ·the application is then deemed by CalPERS as the 1st of

17· ·the month in which the application was received.· So we

18· ·received it June 3rd, 2019, so the earliest effective

19· ·retirement day that she can have is June 1st, 2019.

20· · · ·Q· · Thank you.· If I can ask you to turn to the next

21· ·exhibit in the binder, PERS -- or Exhibit 18, PERS 214.

22· · · ·A· · Okay.· I'm there.

23· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

24· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

25· · · ·Q· · What is this document?
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·1· · · ·A· · This is letter dated June 6, 2019, to

·2· ·Ms. Schueneman showing that we had processed her service

·3· ·retirement portion of the application.

·4· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

·5· · · · · · (Discussion off the record)

·6· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay.· I'm sorry about that.· This is a

·7· ·letter dated June 6th, 2019, to Ms. Schueneman showing

·8· ·that we had processed her service retirement portion of

·9· ·the application.

10· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

11· · · ·Q· · And this is a true and accurate copy of the

12· ·letter CalPERS sent to Ms. Schueneman dated June 6, 2019?

13· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

14· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

15· ·admission of Exhibit 18 into evidence.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

17· ·Ms. Schueneman?

18· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.

19· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· 18 is admitted.

20· · · · · · (Exhibit 18 was received in evidence.)

21· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

22· · · ·Q· · Mr. Grigsby, can I have you turn to Exhibit 19 in

23· ·CalPERS' exhibit binder?

24· · · ·A· · Okay.

25· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

https://www.kennedycourtreporters.com


·1· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

·2· · · ·Q· · What is this document?

·3· · · ·A· · This is a letter dated July 8, 2019, from CalPERS

·4· ·to Ms. Schueneman requesting additional information to see

·5· ·if we can grant an early effective retirement date.

·6· · · ·Q· · So you discussed earlier in your testimony about

·7· ·CalPERS sending or requesting information from parties to

·8· ·see if they can grant that earlier effective retirement

·9· ·date.

10· · · · · · Is this what that letter is doing?· Is this what

11· ·you referenced earlier in your testimony?

12· · · ·A· · Yes.

13· · · ·Q· · And this is a true and accurate copy of the

14· ·letter CalPERS sent to Ms. Schueneman?

15· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

16· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

17· ·admission of Exhibit 19 into evidence.

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

19· ·Ms. Schueneman?

20· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· 19 is admitted.

22· · · · · · (Exhibit 19 was received in evidence.)

23· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

24· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to Exhibit 20,

25· ·page PERS 220?
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·1· · · ·A· · Okay.· I'm there.

·2· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

·3· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

·4· · · ·Q· · What is this document?

·5· · · ·A· · This is a letter typed by Ms. Schueneman in

·6· ·response to our letter dated -- the previous exhibit -- of

·7· ·July 18, 2019.· It's her responses.

·8· · · ·Q· · Is this a document that CalPERS reviewed in

·9· ·making its determination here?

10· · · ·A· · Yes.

11· · · ·Q· · And did CalPERS consider this document in making

12· ·its determination?

13· · · ·A· · Yes.

14· · · ·Q· · Did this letter cause CalPERS to change its

15· ·opinion and allow Ms. Schueneman to have an earlier

16· ·effective retirement date?

17· · · ·A· · No.

18· · · ·Q· · Why not?

19· · · ·A· · Because what we do is we look at what the member

20· ·wrote down.· Then we also look at what's stored in the

21· ·My CalPERS system about the communications to see when she

22· ·actually knew about disability retirement.

23· · · ·Q· · And so --

24· · · ·A· · We -- we -- sorry.

25· · · ·Q· · I'm in the middle of the question.· And so why

https://www.kennedycourtreporters.com


·1· ·didn't this letter affect CalPERS' decision then?

·2· · · ·A· · After review of the file, it was determined that

·3· ·Ms. Schueneman was aware of disability retirement as early

·4· ·as January 31st, 2014.

·5· · · ·Q· · So CalPERS didn't find that there was a mistake

·6· ·made or correctable mistake by Ms. Schueneman?

·7· · · ·A· · That's correct.

·8· · · ·Q· · And is Exhibit 20 the correspondence from

·9· ·Ms. Schueneman?· Does this appear to be a true and

10· ·accurate copy of what CalPERS received in response to its

11· ·letter dated July 18, 2019?

12· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

13· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

14· ·admission of Exhibit 20 into evidence.

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection to my

16· ·receiving Exhibit 20, Ms. Schueneman?

17· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor.

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· 20 is admitted.

19· · · · · · (Exhibit 20 was received in evidence.)

20· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

21· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to Exhibit 21, please,

22· ·PERS 224?

23· · · ·A· · Okay.· I'm there.

24· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

25· · · ·A· · Yes.

https://www.kennedycourtreporters.com


·1· · · ·Q· · What is this?

·2· · · ·A· · This is a letter dated July 18, 2019, to

·3· ·Department of Motor Vehicles also requesting information

·4· ·to see what the employer gave Ms. Schueneman about an

·5· ·early effective retirement date or any information about

·6· ·disability retirement.

·7· · · ·Q· · Why does CalPERS send something to the employer?

·8· · · ·A· · We like to gather all the -- all the facts from

·9· ·the member and the employer to see what information was

10· ·given outside of CalPERS.

11· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of the

12· ·letter CalPERS sent to the employer in this case?

13· · · ·A· · Yes.

14· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

15· ·admission of Exhibit 21 into evidence.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

17· ·Ms. Schueneman?

18· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No.· The only thing I -- there's no

19· ·response to it.· They're all questions, but there's -- I

20· ·don't see my response to the question.

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· This was sent to the

22· ·DMV instead of you, but I'm going to admit the document;

23· ·okay?· So Exhibit 21.

24· · · · · · (Exhibit 21 was received in evidence.)

25· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Okay.· Yes, your Honor.
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Mr. Glauberman?

·2· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you, your Honor.

·3· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

·4· · · ·Q· · Can I have you turn to Exhibit 22, Mr. Grigsby,

·5· ·page PERS 228?

·6· · · ·A· · Okay.

·7· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

·8· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

·9· · · ·Q· · What is this document?

10· · · ·A· · This is a letter dated August 22nd, 2019, from

11· ·the Department of Motor Vehicles to the analyst and

12· ·disability retirement (phonetic) Alka Nguyen providing us

13· ·the responses from the letter dated July 18, 2019, to the

14· ·Department of Motor Vehicles.

15· · · ·Q· · So is this something CalPERS reviewed in making

16· ·its ultimate determination in this matter?

17· · · ·A· · Yes.

18· · · ·Q· · And did CalPERS then consider the information --

19· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

20· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

21· · · ·Q· · Did CalPERS consider the information it reviewed

22· ·in this letter?

23· · · ·A· · Yes.

24· · · ·Q· · Did the information in this letter alter CalPERS'

25· ·decision for this matter?
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·1· · · ·A· · No, it did not.

·2· · · ·Q· · Why didn't this alter the decision?

·3· · · ·A· · Because it was determined through our customer

·4· ·touch-point notes and the information that was given to

·5· ·the member -- the Publication 35 -- that she was well

·6· ·aware about disability retirement back as early as 2014

·7· ·which was about five years and five months prior to when

·8· ·she submitted her application for disability retirement.

·9· · · ·Q· · Your Honor, CalPERS -- strike that.

10· · · · · · Does this appear to be a true and accurate copy

11· ·of the letter CalPERS received from Ms. Schueneman's

12· ·employer, DMV, in response to the correspondence?

13· · · ·A· · Yes.

14· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

15· ·introduction of Exhibit 22 into evidence.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Ms. Schueneman, do you have

17· ·any objections?

18· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor.

19· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· 22 is admitted.

20· · · · · · (Exhibit 22 was received in evidence.)

21· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

22· · · ·Q· · Mr. Grigsby, if I could have you turn to the

23· ·final exhibit in the binder, Exhibit 23, PERS 231.

24· · · ·A· · Okay.

25· · · ·Q· · And it's a set of documents -- what looks like
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·1· ·some sort of notes.

·2· · · · · · Can you explain what these are?

·3· · · ·A· · Yes.· This is our customer touch-point notes.

·4· ·They are stored in our My CalPERS system.· These are notes

·5· ·that are from the incoming calls from the member, the

·6· ·employer.· And they are usually taken by the call center,

·7· ·and they are immediately inputted into the system after

·8· ·the conversation is made.

·9· · · ·Q· · You say it's immediately put into the system

10· ·after the conversation is made.

11· · · · · · Is that a requirement from CalPERS to its

12· ·employees that all notes like this have to be done pretty

13· ·much immediately after a conversation?

14· · · ·A· · Yes.

15· · · ·Q· · Can the note itself be changed following its

16· ·entry?

17· · · ·A· · No, it cannot.

18· · · ·Q· · I'm going to direct you to page PERS 240, and I'm

19· ·going to ask you to explain how to read these notes just

20· ·so everybody is clear on how to interpret what's in a

21· ·note.

22· · · ·A· · Okay.

23· · · ·Q· · And if we can just look at the top of the page --

24· ·the first full note on the page.· So it says,

25· ·"Kevin Abram," and then underneath it says, "8/1/2016."
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·1· · · ·A· · Okay.

·2· · · ·Q· · So what can you -- before reading the note text

·3· ·at the bottom -- we don't need to read that out loud, but

·4· ·can you just explain how to read what information you can

·5· ·garner as a CalPERS employee from this note?

·6· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

·7· · · · · · (Discussion off the record)

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Mr. Grigsby?

·9· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.· So what it is -- this is a note

10· ·from Kevin Abram.· So this -- Mr. Abram received a call

11· ·from Ms. Schueneman on August 1st, 2016.

12· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

13· · · ·Q· · And so it says, "Category type."· What does that

14· ·mean?

15· · · ·A· · Disability.· So that means that Ms. Schueneman

16· ·called to inquire about disability retirement on

17· ·August 1st, 2016.

18· · · ·Q· · Then it says, "Note type:· participant."

19· · · · · · What does that mean?

20· · · ·A· · That's a type of category.· There's various

21· ·categories that you can put there, but usually we put

22· ·participant as a category there.

23· · · ·Q· · What does that mean?

24· · · ·A· · I mean -- actually, I don't know.· I don't know

25· ·exactly what that means.
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·1· · · ·Q· · Okay.· And then the note text -- is that just

·2· ·describing what transpired during the call?

·3· · · ·A· · Yes.

·4· · · ·Q· · So on this call it looks like there was a

·5· ·disability retirement conversation, and a Pub. 35 would

·6· ·have been sent?

·7· · · ·A· · That is correct.

·8· · · ·Q· · Do these notes in Exhibit 23 appear to be a true

·9· ·and complete copy of the participant notes for

10· ·Ms. Schueneman's account with CalPERS?

11· · · ·A· · Yes.· Yes.

12· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

13· ·admission of Exhibit 23 into evidence.

14· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

15· ·Ms. Schueneman?

16· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor.

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Exhibit 23 is

18· ·admitted.

19· · · · · · (Exhibit 23 was received in evidence.)

20· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

21· · · ·Q· · Mr. Grigsby, Ms. Schueneman we've discussed has

22· ·been granted a disability retirement by CalPERS?

23· · · ·A· · Yes.

24· · · ·Q· · And in granting that disability retirement, did

25· ·CalPERS have to confirm that she was disabled from the
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·1· ·date she left her state service to the date that she

·2· ·applied for disability retirement?

·3· · · ·A· · Yes.

·4· · · ·Q· · And that's one of the requirements of

·5· ·section 21154 I believe?

·6· · · ·A· · That's correct.

·7· · · ·Q· · So CalPERS doesn't dispute that Ms. Schueneman

·8· ·was disabled when she left work?

·9· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

10· · · ·THE WITNESS:· We are not disputing that.

11· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

12· · · ·Q· · Very briefly, Mr. Grigsby, if I could direct you

13· ·to Exhibit 5 in CalPERS' exhibit binder.· That's PERS 043.

14· · · ·A· · Okay.

15· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this letter?

16· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

17· · · ·Q· · What is this letter?

18· · · ·A· · This is a letter dated September 24th, 2019, to

19· ·Ms. Schueneman letting her know that we have approved her

20· ·disability retirement application.

21· · · ·Q· · Is this a standard letter sent out by CalPERS

22· ·after it approves somebody's disability retirement?

23· · · ·A· · Yes.

24· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of the

25· ·letter CalPERS sent to Ms. Schueneman for her disability

https://www.kennedycourtreporters.com


·1· ·retirement?

·2· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

·3· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

·4· ·admission of Exhibit 5 into evidence.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

·6· ·Ms. Schueneman?

·7· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· 5 is admitted.

·9· · · · · · (Exhibit 5 was received in evidence.)

10· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

11· · · ·Q· · Can I ask you to turn to Exhibit 6,

12· ·page PERS 046?· Do you recognize this document,

13· ·Mr. Grigsby?

14· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

15· · · ·Q· · What is this document?

16· · · ·A· · This is a letter dated September 24th, 2019, to

17· ·Ms. Schueneman letting her know we had denied her request

18· ·for an earlier retirement date.

19· · · ·Q· · And is this a true and accurate copy of a letter

20· ·CalPERS sent to Ms. Schueneman on September 24, 2019?

21· · · ·A· · Yes, it is.

22· · · ·Q· · And this letter looks like -- looks like it

23· ·explains the reasons why CalPERS denied the earlier

24· ·effective retirement date?

25· · · ·A· · Yes.
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·1· · · ·Q· · And it says, "Industrial disability retirement,"

·2· ·on the first line.

·3· · · · · · Do you see that?

·4· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

·5· · · ·Q· · And that's an incorrect statement.· It was just

·6· ·disability retirement?

·7· · · ·A· · That's correct.

·8· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, CalPERS requests

·9· ·introduction of Exhibit 6 in evidence.

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

11· ·Ms. Schueneman?

12· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor.

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· It's admitted.

14· · · · · · (Exhibit 6 was received in evidence.)

15· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

16· · · ·Q· · And lastly, Mr. Grigsby, can I have you turn to

17· ·Exhibit 7, please, PERS 050?

18· · · ·A· · Okay.

19· · · ·Q· · Do you recognize this document?

20· · · ·A· · Yes, I do.

21· · · ·Q· · And what is this?

22· · · ·A· · This is just it looks like another -- another

23· ·duplicate copy of the denial letter for her industrial --

24· ·I'm sorry -- her early effective retirement date, and

25· ·behind that she submitted her appeal letter.
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·1· · · ·Q· · And did CalPERS review --

·2· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

·3· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· There's a lot of background

·4· ·noise.

·5· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

·6· ·BY MR. GLAUBERMAN:

·7· · · ·Q· · I asked -- sorry.· I asked if CalPERS reviewed

·8· ·the information in the appeal letter.

·9· · · ·A· · Yes.

10· · · ·Q· · And was the information -- did it change CalPERS'

11· ·mind regarding the determination?

12· · · ·A· · No, it did not.

13· · · ·Q· · Why not?

14· · · ·A· · Because as I stated in my previous testimony --

15· ·that Ms. Schueneman had nine months to submit her

16· ·application for disability retirement within nine months

17· ·of discontinuing state service.· If that didn't happen,

18· ·the application is deemed to be received within the first

19· ·month in which the application was received by CalPERS

20· ·(phonetic).

21· · · ·Q· · Is Exhibit 7 a true and accurate copy of the

22· ·appeal letter received by CalPERS from Ms. Schueneman?

23· · · ·A· · Yes.

24· · · ·Q· · So it's CalPERS' position in this matter that

25· ·there was no mistake correctable under 20160 made by
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·1· ·Ms. Schueneman?

·2· · · ·A· · That is correct.

·3· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Your Honor, I have no more questions

·4· ·for Mr. Grigsby.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Did you want to admit

·6· ·Exhibit 7?

·7· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Any objection,

·9· ·Ms. Schueneman?

10· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor.· Could you hold on?

11· ·I'm in assisted living, and there's stuff going on

12· ·outside.· Can I tell them to be quiet?

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· I don't hear anything in

14· ·the hallway outside actually, but I'm not sure if you are

15· ·distracted by it but --

16· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yeah.· I'm distracted.

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· If you need to take

18· ·a second, that's fine.· We'll go off the record for a

19· ·second.

20· · · · · · (Off the record)

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· We're back on the record.

22· ·Exhibit 7 is admitted.

23· · · · · · (Exhibit 7 was received in evidence.)

24· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Mr. Glauberman, I note that

25· ·you have Exhibits 1, 2, and 3.
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·1· · · · · · Do you want to admit those for jurisdictional

·2· ·purposes?

·3· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

·4· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· And Ms. Schueneman, that

·5· ·basically means really to explain why we're here today but

·6· ·not the truth of what's alleged in those documents.

·7· · · · · · Do you have any objection to my receiving those

·8· ·documents for jurisdictional purposes?

·9· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor.

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Exhibits 1, 2, and 3

11· ·are admitted for jurisdictional purposes.

12· · · · · · (Exhibits 1, 2, and 3 were received in evidence.)

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· All right.· So

14· ·Ms. Schueneman, now is your opportunity to

15· ·cross-examine -- for cross-examination of Mr. Grigsby if

16· ·you have any -- that means really just if you have any

17· ·questions for him.· It's not your opportunity to testify,

18· ·I caution you.· You'll have that opportunity in a moment.

19· · · · · · But do you have any questions for Mr. Grigsby

20· ·with regard to what he just testified about?

21· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· No, your Honor, I don't.

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· No?· Okay.· All right.· In

23· ·that case, Mr. Grigsby, you -- I would say step down, but

24· ·you're not on the witness stand.· But you may be released.

25· · · · · · Mr. Glauberman, do you have any further
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·1· ·witnesses?

·2· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· No more witnesses, your Honor.

·3· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Ms. Schueneman?

·4· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes, your Honor?

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· That means it's your

·6· ·opportunity to provide your evidence, so the first thing

·7· ·I'm going to do is I'm going to place you under oath;

·8· ·okay?

·9· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· I know this is

11· ·a little weird because we're over the phone, but I'm going

12· ·to ask you to raise your right hand for me, please.

13· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes.

14

15· · · · · · · · · · · ·REGINA SCHUENEMAN,

16· ·called as a witness, having first been duly sworn, was

17· ·examined and testified as follows:

18· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes, I do.

19· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· Now I

20· ·have this information, Ms. Schueneman, but I'm going to

21· ·ask you to state and spell your full name for me.

22· · · ·THE WITNESS:· It's Regina, R-E-G-I-N-A, Schueneman,

23· ·S-C-H-U-E-N-E-M-A-N.

24· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Thank you, Ms. Schueneman.

25· · · · · · And Ms. Schueneman, what is your current age?
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·1· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I am 65.

·2· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· 65.· Okay.· What would you

·3· ·like to tell me today about why we are here?

·4· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Well, we're here because what I did was

·5· ·I -- I resigned from the Department of Motor Vehicles

·6· ·and -- thinking that I would get my retirement to follow

·7· ·right after, and it just didn't work out that way.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· When did you resign?

·9· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I resigned -- I sent a letter

10· ·March 21st, 2017.

11· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

12· · · ·THE WITNESS:· March 21st, 2017 --

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

14· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· -- I sent a letter -- I sent a letter

15· ·to the -- well, actually, I didn't.· I was brought to the

16· ·Department of Motor Vehicles to bring a letter.

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Let's take a look at your

18· ·exhibits.

19· · · · · · Do you have those?

20· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Okay.· Yes, your Honor.

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· So can we look at

22· ·what I marked as Exhibit A?· Do you see that document?

23· ·It's a March 21, 2017 typewritten letter.

24· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yeah.· That's the letter that I wrote

25· ·because the DMV --
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·1· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· This is a letter that you

·2· ·wrote to the DMV?

·3· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.· I received a letter from the

·4· ·Department of Motor Vehicles and -- stating that I was

·5· ·taken off, you know, the payroll.· And I had -- anyway, I

·6· ·was taken off the payroll, and I was temporarily taken off

·7· ·and not permanently taken off.· And I got very confused,

·8· ·so I wrote a letter stating that I want to resign.

·9· · · · · · And the reason why I did this letter is because I

10· ·thought that if I wrote this letter that I would get my

11· ·health insurance.· It has nothing really to do with the

12· ·CalPERS retirement honestly.· It was all about getting my

13· ·health insurance from 2015.· I lost it, and all I wanted

14· ·was my health insurance.

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

16· · · ·THE WITNESS:· And the Department of Motor Vehicles

17· ·didn't help me at all.

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· And so why did you

19· ·bring this Exhibit A today?· This letter from March 21st,

20· ·2017?

21· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Pardon me?

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Why did you bring the

23· ·letter today from March 21st, 2017?· What did you want to

24· ·show me with this letter?

25· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I think what I want to show you is the
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·1· ·fact that I noted March 21st, 2017, I think because I just

·2· ·was real sick.· And I was in a skilled nursing prior to

·3· ·that for six months and I almost died and I needed to get

·4· ·my health insurance.· That's why I wrote the letter was

·5· ·just to get my health insurance.· So I figure if I resign

·6· ·from the DMV, they'll give me my health insurance.

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.

·8· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I was -- at this time I had just gotten

·9· ·out of ICU.· I had gone home.· I had a nurse for three

10· ·weeks, and I just got too sick.· Ended up back in the

11· ·hospital, and my family put me in this assisted living

12· ·here -- care.· I couldn't dress myself or walk or shower.

13· ·I couldn't do anything.

14· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· When were you placed in

15· ·assisted living?

16· · · ·THE WITNESS:· In April of --

17· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· What year?

18· · · ·THE WITNESS:· -- 2017.· 2017.

19· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· Let's

20· ·take a look at Exhibit B, and that is the Scripps Clinic

21· ·at Carmel Valley Family Medicine letter.

22· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

23· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Can you tell me what that

24· ·is?

25· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.· This is -- my doctor -- he has
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·1· ·been my primary care doctor for many years, and he's

·2· ·overseen me regarding the Department of Motor Vehicles --

·3· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

·4· · · ·THE WITNESS:· -- and the exposure to mold.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Exposure to mold?

·6· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.· The building was shut down for --

·7· ·Department of Motor Vehicles in Escondido was shut down

·8· ·due to the mold.· Many people got sick.· I just --

·9· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

10· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Many people were sick.· I just was one

11· ·of the worst ones.· I think, you know --

12· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· So is this letter

13· ·from your physician?

14· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.· This letter is from

15· ·Dr. Adam Rhodes.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· And why did you bring this

17· ·letter today?

18· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I brought it to the attention because I

19· ·don't think that it's being understood how sick I've been

20· ·since 2013.· And I've never -- and I do agree with

21· ·Mr. Glauberman, and they did send me out packets -- the

22· ·packets and that, but I couldn't mentally comprehend that.

23· ·I just couldn't.

24· · · · · · Right after I moved in here, I got cancer, so I

25· ·was going through chemotherapy for the rest of the year of
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·1· ·2017.· But there were a lot of times I'd be in the

·2· ·hospital and I would think, "Oh, maybe I should call

·3· ·CalPERS.· Maybe I could get help."· I would just do that.

·4· · · · · · I don't -- I never really comprehended too much

·5· ·of what any of them -- I didn't comprehend the process of

·6· ·the DMV and CalPERS.· No matter how many times they could

·7· ·have told me, I didn't understand at all.· I just didn't.

·8· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· When was your last day of

·9· ·work at the DMV?

10· · · ·THE WITNESS:· My last day -- I tried a couple times to

11· ·work, but I believe my last day was July.· I went to work

12· ·for four days, but I ended up in the hospital.

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· July?· July what year?

14· · · ·THE WITNESS:· July of 2013.

15· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· You worked at the DMV until

16· ·sometime in July of 2013?

17· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

19· · · ·THE WITNESS:· July -- at the end of July.· I think it

20· ·was the 25th.· Somewhere in there.· 2013 was my last day

21· ·of work.· I went to Temecula at that time.

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· And when did you

23· ·first become ill?

24· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I became ill probably -- well, 2013 is

25· ·when I found out --
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·1· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

·2· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I said that I found out that it was

·3· ·because of mold.· I didn't know why I was sick.· We

·4· ·went -- I -- we were all sick.· We thought we were passing

·5· ·a cold back and forth.· Chronic sinusitis I ended up with,

·6· ·too.

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· So when did you

·8· ·first -- when did you first become ill?

·9· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I would say in 2012.

10· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· And you said you

11· ·coughed a lot?· I'm sorry.

12· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Oh, yes.

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· When were you coughing a

14· ·lot?

15· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yeah.· I was -- let's see.· In 2013

16· ·January, 2013 March, 2013 May and June -- both months --

17· ·2013 July, 2013 August, and 2013 in November.

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· And why did you

19· ·cough a lot?

20· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Respiratory.· I -- they didn't know what

21· ·was wrong with me when I first went.· It was my

22· ·respiratory.· I had --

23· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

24· · · ·THE WITNESS:· I had -- white cell count was real high.

25· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.
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·1· · · ·THE WITNESS:· My respiratory.· And constant pneumonia.

·2· ·On every hospital intake, I had -- my oxygen was in the

·3· ·80s and my -- and I had pneumonia --

·4· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

·5· · · ·THE WITNESS:· -- several times.

·6· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Can we take a

·7· ·look at what is Exhibit C?· It looks like an e-mail from

·8· ·you to the Law Offices of Cohen & Blitz from March 16,

·9· ·2017.

10· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yeah.

11· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Can you tell me what that

12· ·is?

13· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yeah.· This is -- this is a letter that

14· ·I had filled out some forms and -- to my lawyer, and I was

15· ·explaining what a difficult time I was going through and

16· ·that I was going to resign.· I'm going to -- I told him I

17· ·was going to send a letter of resignation to the DMV, and

18· ·then hopefully CalPERS can come to me to retire from the

19· ·state.· I --

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Are you there?

21· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

23· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

24· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yes.· In my letter I wrote hopefully

25· ·CalPERS can come to me to retire from the state.· I think
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·1· ·what I was -- what I was saying is I was expecting CalPERS

·2· ·to, you know, retire me at that time.· Hopefully they'll

·3· ·approve me to retire.· That's what I was thinking.

·4· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

·5· · · ·THE WITNESS:· At least I believe that's what I was

·6· ·thinking.

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· And is that why you

·8· ·brought this letter in today?· So that I could see what

·9· ·you were thinking?

10· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Yeah.· I just wanted -- I just wanted

11· ·you to be aware that -- you know, that I did tell my

12· ·workers' comp lawyer that I was sending a letter of

13· ·resignation to the DMV and that just hopefully -- that

14· ·they would come to me so I could retire and get my

15· ·benefits.· All I cared about was my health insurance.

16· ·That's it.· That's -- every letter is about health

17· ·insurance.

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.

19· · · · · · Mr. Glauberman, do you have any objections to my

20· ·receiving Exhibits A, B, and C into evidence?

21· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· No objections, your Honor.

22· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Exhibits A, B,

23· ·and C are admitted.

24· · · · · · (Exhibits A, B, and C were received in evidence.)

25· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Ms. Schueneman,
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·1· ·anything else you want to tell me?

·2· · · ·THE WITNESS:· Well, no, your Honor.· I just -- I

·3· ·just -- I had sent all my medical records from 2013 to

·4· ·present.· And I've been hospitalized so many times.· I've

·5· ·had cancer twice.· I've got to go through treatment again,

·6· ·and I'm still not well.· I -- that's why -- I wish I could

·7· ·not be in assisted living, but I just have to be because I

·8· ·can't take care of myself.

·9· · · · · · Mentally I'm not -- mentally I'm really not well.

10· ·Not crazy not well, but I'm just not well with my thought

11· ·process.· I just don't make proper decisions.· And my

12· ·doctor feels when you're under so much health conditions,

13· ·it's very difficult for me to really make any clear

14· ·decisions.

15· · · · · · I wish I did have someone to help me make a

16· ·decision.· I asked for help with the DMV, but nobody was

17· ·there to help me.· My lawyer didn't help me with workers'

18· ·comp either.· And that's still pending, and it's seven

19· ·years later.· I still haven't received anything, and it's

20· ·been seven years.· All I want is my health insurance.

21· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right then.

22· · · · · · Cross-examination, Mr. Glauberman?

23· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· No questions, your Honor.

24· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· It looks like I have

25· ·admitted all of the documents, so at this point I'm going
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·1· ·to allow -- Ms. Schueneman, I'm going to allow

·2· ·Mr. Glauberman to have a closing statement, and then I'll

·3· ·allow you to have a closing statement; okay?

·4· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

·5· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Mr. Glauberman?

·6· · · ·MR. GLAUBERMAN:· Thank you, your Honor.· CalPERS --

·7· ·you know, it does not dispute, as stated through

·8· ·Mr. Grigsby's testimony, that Ms. Schueneman is disabled

·9· ·and has had a rough go of it.· But 21252 of the

10· ·Government Code requires the application be -- if it's not

11· ·received within nine months of retirement that the

12· ·effective retirement date be the first day of the month on

13· ·which it's received.

14· · · · · · Here that's -- the separation from service was

15· ·2015.· Application was not received until June 2019, so

16· ·that has to be the effective retirement date -- retirement

17· ·date.

18· · · · · · Analyzing this matter under Government

19· ·Code 20160, there was no mistake correctable by that

20· ·section here.· CalPERS sent Ms. Schueneman all the

21· ·information necessary to apply for a disability retirement

22· ·or apply for a retirement in a timely manner, and that was

23· ·not done.· It's CalPERS' position that that is not

24· ·reasonable under the circumstances here.· Because of that,

25· ·CalPERS can't grant the earlier effective retirement date.
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·1· · · · · · And in addition, just for purposes of reflecting

·2· ·in the record the section that governs insurance in the

·3· ·retirement, it's regulation -- I believe it's California

·4· ·Code of Regulations 599.501 section D.· And that states

·5· ·that the member cannot have health insurance into

·6· ·retirement unless they retire within -- their effective

·7· ·date of retirement is within four months I believe of

·8· ·separating from state service, and so that would preclude

·9· ·unfortunately the insurance coverage for Ms. Schueneman

10· ·also.

11· · · · · · With that, your Honor, we request you uphold our

12· ·determination and deny Ms. Schueneman's appeal.

13· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· Hold on a second.

14· · · · · · Ms. Schueneman?

15· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes, your Honor?

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.

17· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes.

18· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· It's your opportunity to

19· ·provide me a closing statement if you'd like.

20· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Well, it's -- well, just like

21· ·Mr. Glauberman said, it's all about getting my retirement

22· ·date to 2015.· And it wasn't really about the retirement

23· ·date as I stated.· It really was about the insurance.

24· · · · · · I -- I -- what I expect -- what I thought is

25· ·CalPERS has my insurance title, you know.· So I thought
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·1· ·that if they were to back me up on the retirement, then I

·2· ·would be able to have my regular retirement date.  I

·3· ·didn't really care about the 2015 date backdated.· All I

·4· ·want was my health insurance.

·5· · · · · · So I know that doesn't really kind of go with

·6· ·what Mr. Glauberman said because as far as my date back to

·7· ·2015, I don't know why it didn't send any red flags to

·8· ·anybody actually -- backdate anything from 2017 to 2015.

·9· ·Why on earth would the DMV accept something like that

10· ·knowing I wasn't retired and --

11· · · · · · (Interruption in the proceedings)

12· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Why the DMV would accept a letter

13· ·dated March 21st to backdate knowing on all parties --

14· ·knowing that I would not receive my retirement (phonetic).

15· ·It didn't send any red flags to anybody.· No one

16· ·responded, "Are you sure you want to backdate to 2015?

17· ·Because you won't get anything."

18· · · · · · And I wish I had an advocate.· I wish somebody

19· ·was an advocate for me regarding it, and I had nobody.

20· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· All right.· So

21· ·Ms. Schueneman, let me give you some information as to how

22· ·this is going to proceed from this point.

23· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes.· Yes, your Honor.

24· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· So in just a second I'll

25· ·have the record closed.· Everything has been submitted.
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·1· ·And after that point, I will have 30 days with which to

·2· ·provide my proposed decision to CalPERS.· They can accept

·3· ·my decision, they can reject it, or they can amend it, but

·4· ·at some point thereafter you'll get the final decision

·5· ·directly from CalPERS; okay?

·6· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· Yes, your Honor.

·7· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· All right.· Thank you.· I'm

·8· ·sorry.· Go ahead.

·9· · · ·MS. SCHUENEMAN:· I mean, I'll take the September --

10· ·you know, the September date or the June 1st date.· I'm

11· ·kind of confused because the 1st of June I'm retired, and

12· ·then in September I'm retired.· There was a woman that

13· ·told me that I would have my insurance now that I retired.

14· ·That's when I kind of found out about the 2015 and

15· ·shouldn't have done that.

16· · · ·ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:· Okay.· So I want to

17· ·thank you for your time and effort today.· I know this is

18· ·a lot to put together, particularly over the telephone.

19· ·But with that, the matter is submitted and the record is

20· ·closed.

21· · · · · · (Hearing concluded at 10:56 a.m.)

22
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25
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·1· · · · · · · · · · REPORTER'S CERTIFICATION

·2

·3· · · · · · I, the undersigned, a Certified Shorthand

·4· ·Reporter of the State of California, do hereby certify:

·5· · · · · · That the foregoing proceedings were taken before

·6· ·me at the time and place herein set forth; that any

·7· ·witnesses in the foregoing proceedings, prior to

·8· ·testifying, were duly sworn; that a record of the

·9· ·proceedings was made by me using machine shorthand, which

10· ·was thereafter transcribed under my direction; that the

11· ·foregoing transcript is a true record of the testimony

12· ·given.

13· · · · · · Further, that if the foregoing pertains to the

14· ·original transcript of a deposition in a federal case,

15· ·before completion of the proceedings, review of the

16· ·transcript was not requested.

17· · · · · · I further certify I am neither financially

18· ·interested in the action nor a relative or employee of any

19· ·attorney or party to this action.

20· · · · · · IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have this date subscribed

21· ·my name.

22· ·Dated: August 18, 2020
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